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PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH PASTORS
UNION CHURCH = WASHINGTON AVE & FAULKNER ST.

Presbyterian, Methodist, Protestant Episcopal, & Baptist Churches attended
Rev. Charles Grandison Selleck 04/26/1875 to 02/10/1884 (Deceased)

FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH — CORONADO BEACH -1926 TO 1933
Rev. Everett H. Sperow 01/04/1926 to 04/01/1926

Rev. Edward F. Morse 11/09/26 to 05/27
Rev. J. W. Parkhill 10/27 to 3/31/29
Rev. Frank M. Palmer 11/29 to 10/30
Rev. James L. Glenn 11/30 to 05/31

Rev. Merlin Frederick Usner 10/15/31 to 6/29/33
FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH — MAGNOLIA ST. - 1933 TO 1947

Rev. Garrett V. Albertson 04/22/34 to 4/14/41
Rev. Dr. W. N. Blair (Stated Supply) 12/04/41 — 07/42
Rev. Charles P. Foreman (Stated Supply) 08/42 — 10/31/42
Rev. H. A. Rhodes (Stated Supply) 11/05/42 — 10/03/43
Rev. Bruce J. Griffen (Stated Supply) 01/30/44 — 05/31/44
Rev. Robert B. Russell 06/18/44 to 12/13/50

COMBINED WITH THE CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH - 1947 to 01/3/53
Rev. Karl E. Wickstrom (Stated Supply during Confederation) 1950 - 11/53
FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH — MAGNOLIA ST. - 1954 — PRESENT

Rev. Dr. Walter L. Ritter (Interim) 01/03/54 to 05/11/54

Rev. Dr. Weaver Keith Eubank (04/11/17) 05/11/54 to 05/25/63 (deceased)
Rev. W. Heston Milligan (06/ /47) 10/20/63 to 04/14/68 (resigned)
Rev. Claud M. Cluney (06/15/52) 09/19/68 to 05/04/75 (resigned)
Rev. Dr. William Chegwin (06/26/66) 07/04/1976 to 12/31/2002 (retired)

Rev. David M. Keazirian (03//88) 07/01/04 to 02/19/15 (renounced jurisdiction)
Rev. George T. Head (09/12/86) 02/25/18 to current



Greetings from your Pastor!

A man walked up to me at a new church in Chattanooga, Tennessee, and
asked, “Your name is Head?” “Yes,” | replied. “Would that be the Kentucky
Heads or the Indiana Heads?” “My dad was born in Kentucky,” | replied. He
appeared to think about that and asked, “Would that be the Owensboro Heads
or the Louisville Heads?” “He was from a small place outside Owensboro,” |
answered, wondering who this guy was and why he was asking so many
questions. “Let’'s see, outside Owensboro, would it be Sargho?” | was
speechless. “Yes, he was born in Sargho.” Then he said, “Well then, welcome to
our church. Them’s good people.” Remember, we were in Chattanooga at the
time, and | didn’t know this guy from Adam’s tomcat. He turned out to be an
expert in this sort of thing and sought to know the history of people he got to
know.

Everything has a history. People, churches, everything. This man was trying to
discover my history. They say that in the south, the first relevant question when
meeting someone new is “Who are your people?”

The booklet you have in your hand is an attempt to answer that question. On the
occasion of our 150th Anniversary as a church, we are taking time to look back
and understand better where we came from, who we have been, and celebrate
God’s work with and through us in the last 150 years. It's an opportunity to ask
and answer, “Who are your people? Where did we come from? What historical
events shaped us?” Then perhaps understand better where God is calling us in
the future.

John Bros has done extensive research, gleaning data, letters, pictures and
more from archives, libraries and museums, as well as our own stored boxes of
“stuff” kept in dark closets. It was an heroic effort, and one | hope you will
appreciate by reading and seeing the great pathway into our past. It is
essentially a story of who the author is, God.

Donald Creighton said, “History is the record of an encounter between character
and circumstance.”

In these pages you will find a record of both. The character of the church molded
by God, and the circumstances we have been allowed to experience as God
has called us into Ministry and Mission.

| guess it comes down to this: Sometimes we as Christians need to stop along
life's road and look back. Although it might have been winding and steep, we
can see how God directed us by God’s amazing grace and faithfulness.

Enjoy this journey into our past.
Pastor George Head



CHURCH HISTORY SUMMARY

| PERIOD | | | PERIOD Ii | | PERIOD Ili |
‘ THE BEGINING THE HIATUS THE REBIRTH
1875 -1907 1907 — 1926 1926 — 1933
CHRIST CHURCH, THE PRESBYTERIAN SECOND ORGANIZATION OF
KNOWN AS THE CONGREGATION CEASED, THE PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

UNION CHURCH
ESTABLISHED BY
REV. CHARLES
4 DENOMINATIONS
PRESBYTERIAN
METHODIST
EPISCOPAL
BAPTIST
12/1875 ~ CONGREGATIONAL
SHELDON FAMILY
DONATED PROPERTY ON
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF
WASHINGTON AVE
AND FAULKNER ST
1877 — PRESBYTERY
RECEIVES CONGREGATION
REV. CHARLES SELLECK
DIED 1884
1886 — METHODISTS LEFT
AND STARTED ‘THE FIRST
METHODIST EPISCOPAL
CHURCH’ ON FAULKNER ST.
NO INFORMATION ABOUT
A PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH
EXISTING UNTIL 1907

C

MAYBE AS EARLY 1889, WHEN
THE CONGREGATIONALISTS
STARTED THEIR OWN CHURCH
AND TOOK MOST OF THE

‘ PRESBYTERIAN MEMBERS ‘
1907 — PROTESTANT EPISCOPAL

CONGREGATION LEFT AND
STARTED ‘ST. PAUL
PROTESTANT EPISCOPAL
MISSION ON PALMETTO
AND DOWNING ST.

1907 - THE BAPTIST CHURCH
BUYS THE UNION CHURCH
PROPERTY FROM THE

OTHER CONGREGATIONS

NEXT INFORMATION ABOUT A
PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH OR

CONGREGATION WAS 1925

‘ IN JANUARY, 1926 ‘

REV. EVERETT SPEROW
HELD SERVICES AT SAMSULA
| _AND ON CORONADO BEACH |
THE DETWILER FAMILY
DONATED CORONADO BEACH
PROPERTY AND PROVIDED
FINANCIAL SUPPORT
CHARTERED AS THE ‘FIRST
PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH’
NEW SANCTUARY BUILT ON
SOUTH SIDE OF E 3RD AVE
CHURCH HAD SIX PASTORS
OVER SEVEN YEARS
DEPRESSION RESULTED IN
FINANCIAL DIFFICULTIES
AND REDUCED MEMBERSHIP
CHURCH MOVED BACK TO
NEW SMYRNA, MEETING IN
CITY HALL.
PASTOR LEFT, LOST MEETING
ROOM, NO PLACE TO WORSHIP

MAGNOLIA STAT
ANDERSON ST
IN NEW SMYRNA

CONSTRUCTED IN
3 MONTHS ON THE
NORTH LOT OF 4 LOTS
FREE OF DEBT

| SANCTUARY BUILDING | |

SIX PASTORS SERVED
DURING THIS PERIOD

PERIOD IV | | PERIOD V | | PERIOD VI
THE MAGNOLIA THE FEDERATION THE RETURN HOME
1933 — 1947 1947 — 1953 1953 — CURRENT
FEDERATION WITH ON AUGUST 20, 1947, FIRST SERVICE ON JAN
CONGREGATIONAL CONGREGATION VOTED 3RD IN A REPAIRED
CHURCH DECLINED 13 TO 11 TO BECOME SANCTUARY
THE WILLIAM BERGER FEDERATED REV. DR. WEAVER
FAMILY DONATED WITH THE UNITED EUBANK BECAME
PROPERTY ON CHURCH OF CHRIST THE PERMANENT

INDEPENDENT
DENOMINATIONS WITH
JOINT FINANCES
NO MAINTENANCE
ON MAGNOLIA
PROPERTY AND IT
BECAME RUNDOWN
OVER TIME THE
PRESBYTERIAN
MEMBERSHIP BECAME
DISSATISFIED WITH
THE FEDERATION

THE FEDERATION WAS

DISSOLVED 12/31/1953

NOW FINANCIALLY
SOUND & NO LONGER
NEEDED MISSION AID

| CONGREGATION GREW

NON-MISSION PASTOR
PASTOR IN MARCH

TO OVER 350 MEMBERS
NEW SANCTUARY
DEDICATED MARCH ‘61
DR. EUBANK DIED 1963
EDUCATION BUILDING,
FELLOWSHIP HALL,
CHAPEL & LIBRARY
DEDICATED MARCH ‘67
REV. DR. WILLIAM
CHEGWIN BECAME
PASTOR IN 1966
REVITALIZED
YOUTH MINISTRY

PASTOR FOR 25 YRS
CURRENT PASTOR IS

REV GEORGE HEAD




HISTORY OF THE FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH OF NEW SMYRNA BEACH
PERIOD |
THE BEGINNING
1875 - 1907
1845: Florida admitted to the Union.

“‘Just as we read in the Bible about the challenges that the churches had in
centuries past, so did our first Presbyterian Church struggle. But with God’s
blessing and guidance our church fathers prevailed and now 150 years later we
give thanks for our church that stands strong in serving our community and each
other in love, faith, and joy.” Becky Bros

The narrative of our First Presbyterian Church’s history begins here:

Early 1875: “Rev. Charles Grandison Selleck, an 1827 Congregational minister
graduate of Yale, was a home missionary who traveled on horseback to
churches along a 30 mile area of the eastern seaboard, with three principal
centers of operation, New Smyrna being one of them.” (Rev. Selleck ultimately
lived in Glencoe with his wife, Emily Crocker Selleck. The street they lived on
was later named Selleck Avenue for him.)

At the time, there were no churches in the New Smyrna area. Rev. Selleck
decided to organize a church. The heirs of the John D. Sheldon Estate, led by
his widow Jane, donated estate property for the first church in New Smyrna “as
a place of religious worship for the Presbyterians, the Methodists, the Protestant
Episcopal, and the Baptist Churches.”

April 26, 1875: Excerpts from the Sales/Donation Document for the Property for
the new Church are included below. The Document is from the Sheldon
Research Library via The New Smyrna Museum of History:

“THIS INDENTURE, made and entered into this twenty sixth day of April, A. D.
one thousand eight hundred and seventy five, between Jane Sheldon, Martha F.
Sheldon, Frank W. Sams, and Zelia Sams, heirs at law of the late John D.
Sheldon, of the County of Volusia and State of Florida, parties of the first part,
and Edmund K. Lowd, Rhodolphus Sheldon, Francis Fox, and Charles G.
Selleck, as Trustees of a church to be used as hereafter named parties of the
second part.”



‘WITNESSETH, that the said parties of the first part for and in consideration of
the sum of one dollar, to them in hand paid by said parties of the second part, at
and before the ensealing and delivery of these presents, the receipt whereof is
hereby acknowledged, have granted, bargained, sold, aliened, remised,
released, conveyed and confirmed and by these presents do grant, bargain, sell
alien, convey and confirm unto the said parties of the second part as aforesaid,
and their successors forever, All the following lot tract, or parcel of land lying and
being in the County of Volusia, and the State of Florida, know and described as
follows, all that certain plot of land in the Town of New Smyrna, bounded and
described as follows, viz;”. Document then describes an 80’ X 100’ parcel
located on the southeast corner of Washington Ave. and Faulkner St., the 60’
side on Faulkner St. (The document’s description of the lot states “....which
right angle (plot) line passes at a distance of (20) twenty feet southwesterly from
the most westerly corner of a church now being erected”.)

Document continues: “Said lands and buildings thereon to be held by the said
Trustees and their successors for the use of their inhabitants of New Smyrna as
a place of religious worship for the Presbyterians, the Methodists, the Protestant
Episcopal, and the Baptist churches, and to be used by any Minister of the
aforesaid denominations who may be present at any time worship may be held.”

May - December 1875: “The plain white, rectangular
frame church building with Gothic style windows and a
hexagonal shaped belfry over the front entrance was
completed by the first Sabbath in December.” There are

no known records detailing how the building was

financed. But consider this; the first members of the

church were wealthy. The Sheldon family was local land r.
owners, the Lowd family were local hotel and land
owners, and William Coe, a close friend of Rev. Sellect,
was the son of a Copper Baron. “William Coe had
recently come to New Smyrna from Jacksonville mainly because Mr. and Mrs.
Selleck lived there and wished very much for William and Deborah and family to
come and make it their home. Rev. Selleck had married them in 1846 in lllinois.
William then built his substantial home with his sons, and then built two other
buildings for other parties.” Thus, it seems reasonable to believe that Reuv.
Selleck had the financial and labor support to get the first church building in New
Smyrna, Florida constructed.




December 5, 1875: “On the first Sabbath in December A. D. 1875, the
following named persons, citizens of New Smyrna and vicinity, assembled in the
church recently erected and the first and only building that had been set up in
the place for religious worship, and organized themselves under the supervision
of Rev. Charles G. Selleck, into a church. In addition to Rev. Selleck, the
members were William and Deborah Coe, Emily Selleck, Jane Sheldon, and
Victoria Lowd. Also present the following two named brethren, local preachers of
the Methodist and Episcopal Church.” It concluded: “We gave our solemn assent
to the following Creed and covenant, and dedicated ourselves to the service of
God the Father, Son and Holy Ghost, desiring to be known by no other name
than The Church of Christ.”

December 1875: From Robert Campbell WPA Documents #1 dated Nov. 6,
1940: “Records of the Christ Congregational Church show they held their
organizational meeting the first Sabbath in December 1875 in this building
“recently erected and the first and only building that had been set up in the place

for religious worship”.” Rev. Selleck was listed as their Pastor.

From the website of The United Church of Christ, originally the Christ
Congregational Church: “In December 1875 during the youthful days of New
Smyrna Beach, a small band of spirit-led Christians, under the leadership of the
Rev. Charles G. Selleck, met together to form a church which they called Christ
Church. Their first place of worship was a one-room hall on the corner of
Washington Ave. and Faulkner Street, the present site of the large Baptist
Church diagonally across from our existing sanctuary. Membership totaled 16.” It
is now clear that The Church of Christ (Union) had five religious denominations
worshiping from 1875.

February 1876: Rev. Selleck wrote to the Presbyterian Presbytery of Austin,
Texas: “We have dedicated our church edifice; though not yet completed, it is
comfortable and pleasant. We organized a church of seven members, on which
occasion sixteen sat down at the Lord’s Table. It was the first communion
service of a Protestant church in this part of the land. We expect to have
preaching here twice a month, Bible class and Sunday school every week.”

1876: The completed Church of Christ’s white building, facing on Faulkner
Street at the SE corner of Washington Ave, became generally known as the
‘Union Church’ due to the ownership and usage by the four designated



denominations. Each had an assigned Sunday service time, and the
Presbyterians were at 9:00am.

1877: “The Protestant Episcopal congregation first met in the home of Edmund
Kirby Lowd (over a year after The Church of Christ started). The same year the
congregation moved to the Church of Christ (Union or Community Church).”

May 1877: “The Presbyterian congregation was received into the South East
Florida Presbytery, PC USA with the name appearing in General Assembly
Minutes as “Community Church” after two Elders were elected, and appeared in
the General Assembly Minutes each year from 1877-1884. One of the Elders
was William Henry Coe, the founder of the hamlet of Glencoe in 1874.

1879: Mrs. Jane Sheldon donated a bell to the Union Church that was salvaged
from the Mississippi River Steamship 'The Belle of Texas’, which was wrecked
on the beach just north of the Turtle Mound.

Octorber 1879: William Henry Coe died and was buried on the Church of
Christ’s property. He was later interned at the Hawk’s Park Cemetery (now
Edgewater) at the church’s request.

1880: New Smyrna population was 119; Church membership averaged 12.

February 10, 1884: Rev. Charles Grandison Selleck died at the age of 82 in
Norwalk, Connecticut and buried there.

1886: From Thomas Waldrup WPA Documents dated August 23, 1940:
“Church of Christ (Union) members who adhered to the Methodist Episcopal
faith secured the use of the town school house, and there a church was
organized with 7 charter members. A year later, the First Methodist Episcopal
Church’s building was erected at 315 N. Faulkner St.”

March 1887: The Blue Spring, Orange City and Atlantic Railroad arrived in New
Smyrna with the station located on Lytle Avenue.

1887: The town of New Smyrna was incorporated. From the 1887 book titled
‘The East Coast of Florida, “little had changed with the Alden, Cook, Detwiler,
and Wilson families maintaining residences on the peninsula (Coronado). On
the mainland, it was estimated there were some 115 permanent residents
occupying forty-one dwellings that dotted the New Smyrna landscape. A railroad
depot, church, hotel, livery, school, and several commercial buildings supported
the New Smyrna community.”



NOTED: Many of the following quotes about the early history of the Christ
Church/Union Church were reported by Robert P. Campbell, an employee of
The Works Project Administration (WPA) in 1940. He was doing a Historical
Records Survey — Church Inventory. He interviewed Mrs. Zilia Wilson Sweett,
Great Granddaughter of John and Jane Sheldon, the Jane Sheldon that donated
the land for the Union Church in 1875. The Campbell Documents #1 & #2 were
found on the State of Florida website (floridamemory.com) in June & July, 2024
while researching ‘The Union Church’, Mrs. Zilia Wilson Sweett, and Volusia
County Presbyterian Churches. Thus, this historical information is a new and
important addition to the Presbyterian Church of New Smyrna’s history.

Feb 18, 1889: From Robert Campbell WPA Documents #1 dated Nov. 6,
1940: The Congregationalists left the Union Church, formed the Christ
Congregational Church, “taking with them most of the Presbyterians” and
constructed a church building kitty-corner to the Union Church’s property.

Feb 18, 1889: From the Christ Congregational Church’s Charter:

Charles Melbourne Sellect, The Church of Christ’s (Union) founder’s son, and
Rodolphus S. Sheldon, one of the The Church of Christ’s property donors, left
with them and served on the committee to prepare a Constitution.

1907: “The Protestant Episcopal congregation left the Church of Christ and
moved into their newly completed St. Paul Protestant Episcopal Mission’s
building at Palmetto and Downing Streets.”

1907: From Robert P. Campbell WPA Documents #1 dated Nov. 6, 1940:

“A mutually satisfactory arrangement was made by the several congregations
involved, and the heirs of Jane Sheldon, and the Baptist Church bought the
Church of Christ’s property, moved the old church building to the back of the lot
where it served as the Baptist Sunday School, and a Mission Baptist Church
was built on the front. This arrangement officially ended The Church of
Christ/'Union Church’.

This period of the history of the Presbyterian Church of New Smyrna comes to
an end.




HISTORY OF THE FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH OF NEW SMYRNA BEACH
PERIOD 1l
THE HIATUS
1907 - 1926

1908 - 1924: In the three narrative documents on the history of the church
provided by the Edwards Felmet Family, Rev. Harry A. Rhodes, and
Anonymous, and both Campbell Documents, no information is found about an
organized Presbyterian Church in NEW Smyrna Beach from the 1890’s through
the first 25 years of the Twentieth Century. Contrary to that, there were records
of the First Congregational Church over that same period detailed in the
Campbell Documents. After “most of the Presbyterians joined the First
Congregational Church in 1889” and the Baptist Church bought the original
church property in 1907, it is evident that an organized Presbyterian
congregation had ceased to exist, maybe as early as 1889. Then ‘Happy New
Year 1925’ arrived.

This period of the history of the Presbyterian Church of New Smyrna comes to
an end.




HISTORY OF THE FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH OF NEW SMYRNA BEACH
PERIOD Il
THE REBIRTH
1926 - 1933

April 19, 1925: From The New Smyrna News dated April 24, 1925:

“The Rev. Dr. John F. Shepherd of Eustis, executive head of the Presbyterian
Church in the State of Florida gave a very fine sermon to an appreciative
congregation at the regular hour, 9:30 am, Sunday. Dr. Shepherd is a personal
friend of Mrs. Grace Garcee, and it was through her influence that the people
here were fortunate enough to have the opportunity to hear him.”

January 4, 1926: “The second organization of the Presbyterian Church in
New Smyrna came about as follows: Twelve (12) Presbyterians met in the
home of Mrs. Grace Garcee. It was voted to ask Rev. Shepherd to engage the
Rev. Everett H. Sperow to preach in the New Smyrna area for three (3) months.
Mr. Sperow began his work on Jan. 10, 1926. He held Sunday services at

Samsula in the morning and on Coronado Beach at (The Brann) Pavilion in the
afternoon.”

March 14, 1926: From The New Smyrna News dated March 16, 1926: Three
weeks before Easter Sunday, the local newspaper advertised “Church by the
Sea” on Coronado Beach, and there the second congregation of the
Presbyterian Church was effected by Rev. John F. Shepherd (with Rev. Everett
H. Sperow), and the first service took place at “‘The Brann Pavilion’. “There were
twenty two (22) charter members who met at the Pavilion.

New Smyrna Daily News (New Smyrna, Florida)
1926 March 16 Tuesday

The Church by the Sea

Rev E H Sperow, Mistei

1t does no zood for a man to stop
look and listcn unless he thinks

Last Sunday Dr J F Shepherd
Executive for the Synod of Floinida
was with us and orgamzed a Presby
|terian church consisting of 22 mem
bers on New Smvina Beach

Next Sabbath on New Smyrna
Beach at the pavilion at 4 o’clock
m the afteinoon there will be ser |
vices to which we mvite you and wll
give you the glad hand clasp of wel
come The sermon will be on the
Shepherd Psalm and there will be
wpeual music Come with us and we
will do vou good

— oo R




April 26, 1926: “With land and financial support for the new church and religious
education building having been donated by Mrs. Ella M. Detwiler, a building
committee was appointed and during the summer the first unit of the proposed
new church plant was begun”. Confirming the above in a 1999 letter, Mrs. Ruth
Eichelberger, (joined First Presbyterian in 1960), wrote to the First Presbyterian
church of New Smyrna Beach on Magnolia Street responding to requests for
memories for their 125" anniversary: “The Detwiler family were supportive of 1%
Church, gave a lot (property) and building support to the first First Presbyterian
Church (USA) of New Smyrna Beach.”

June 17, 1926: From Robert P. Campbell WPA Documents #2 dated Nov. 9,
1940: The Presbyterian Church’s Charter, dated June, 14, 1926, Charter File
No. 16668, was approved by the Judge of the Seventh Judicial Circuit in and for
Volusia County, Florida and recorded in Book 5 Incorporations, page 425.” “The
name of this corporation shall be THE FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

U.S.A. of New Smyrna Beach”. Corporation # is 74-16-NP-7014009.

November 9, 1926: Rev. Edward F. Morse was installed as the first permanent
pastor and served until the spring of 1927.

1926: The First Presbyterian Church became a Mission Church. That is, it
received aid from the Board of National Missions to help pay the Pastor’s salary.
Pastors were supplied by The Board of Foreign Missions of the Presbyterian
Church in the USA located in New York.

November 10, 1926: Bryan Memorial Bible School was approved by the Synod.

Early 1927: The First Presbyterian Church
building, located on E 3" Ave. on Coronado
Beach was dedicated in early 1927. According to
Rev. Harry A. Rhodes’ 1943 narrative, the church
was located on “the right side of the road
proceeding east from the south bridge and
beyond the flower shop”. The flower shop was
Musson’s Florist, which was located across the :
street from a building (originally an auto service station) that in 1946 became
Norwood’s Restaurant. “And beyond the flower shop” places the church in the
area between the Dunkin Donuts located at 441 E 3" Ave. and Starbucks
located at 491 E 3" Ave.

PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH ON CORONADO BEACH -



Confirming Rev. Rhodes’ narrative about the new church’s location, Mrs. Ruth
Eichelberger wrote in her 1999 letter: “It went dark and when reactivated at a
location off east end of South Causeway Bridge, again gifts were given to the
church”.

1927: The construction and dedication of the Religious Education Building for
the Bryan Memorial Bible School was completed by the Synod’s committee.

1931: The Bryan Memorial Bible School closed and was “sold to Dr. Fred Lewis
Pattee and his wife” for $1400. The Pattee’s later “donated the building to
Rollins College”, who renamed it ‘The Pelican House’. Photos show a sign on
the north end of the building with the words “Rollins College Beach House, The
Pelican”, and Pelicans on each end facing the center.

1931: From Robert P. Campbell WPA Documents #2 dated Nov. 9, 1940:
“Dwindling of the Winter Colony (a result of the depression?) caused a decline
of the church with attendant financial difficulties.” Majority of the congregation
lived on the mainland.

October 15, 1931: Rev. Merlin Frederick Usner, a 1930 graduate of Princeton
Theological Seminary, became Pastor of The First Presbyterian Church of New
Smyrna on Coronado Beach.

1932-1933: During Rev. Usner’s pastorate, Presbytery’s Committee on National
Missions made a survey of the New Smyrna field and recommended that the
beachside site be given up and that the church be relocated across the river in
the town of New Smyrna. This was done and a temporary meeting place was
secured in the old City Hall at the corner of Live Oak and Lytle Sts. “The church
property (on 3" Ave.) was sold and converted into a private residence.”

1933: The Coronado Beach based First Presbyterian Church had 6 pastors in 7
years, the last being the Rev. Merlin Frederick Usner.

June 29, 1933: “Pastor Usner left on this date for his vacation in July. He never
returned and so far as we know, no one knew that he was not coming back.”
The city needed the meeting room for other purposes, and services were
discontinued as there was no place to worship.

This period of the history of the New Smyrna Presbyterian Church comes to an
end.




HISTORY OF THE FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH OF NEW SMYRNA BEACH
PERIOD 1V
THE MAGNOLIA
1933 - 1947

September 1933: An effort was made by the pastor of the West Palm
Presbyterian Church and the Secretary of the of the Board of Missions of the
Congregational Church to unite the Congregational and Presbyterian churches
of New Smyrna Beach. Articles of Federation were agreed upon at a meeting
with only four (4) members of the Presbyterian Church present.

November 7, 1933: “The third organization of the First Presbyterian Church of
New Smyrna Beach came about as follows: “However, after all had returned
from summer vacation, the members of the church met at the home of Mr. and
Mrs. C.A.E. Asendorf, and decided not to do the Federation. They drew up a
request to the S. E. Florida Presbytery and the Synod of Florida asking that a
moderator be appointed for the church and that the $1400 from the sale of the
school building be made available to start construction on the Magnolia Street
property donated by Mr. & Mrs. William H. Berger.”

November 24, 1933: Rev. Garrett V. Albertson was appointed moderator and a
Building Committee was appointed with Mr. George Speidel as chairman. Rev.
Albertson’s “Silent Partner” donated $1400 to replace the requested $1400 that
had already been designated by Presbytery for the “Young People’s
Organization of Florida.

December 13, 1933: The ‘Magnolia Street’ Sanctuary construction began on the
north lot of the four donated lots.

March 11, 1934: First Presbyterian Church’s third church building, located at
507 Magnolia Street, completed in 3 months by Mr. George Speldel and several
church members, was dedicated free of debt. e o gl
Rev. Garrett V. Albertson became pastor of the
third congregation of The First Presbyterian
Church of New Smyrna Beach and the first
service took place. Pastor Albertson served
until March 31, 1941. Five pastors supplied the
pulpit until 1947/48.




1934: The new church was located on a main thoroughfare. “Old U.S. Route 1
went North on Magnolia, West on Canal, then North again on Orange Street.”

1935: “The old building (Union Church) stood until 1935, when it was torn down
and rebuilt on the corner of Enterprise Ave. and Cottonshed Ave, to be used by
the Methodist Episcopal Church.” The bell salvaged from the Mississippi River

Steamship 'The Belle of Texas’ served for many years as the Town'’s fire bell.

1937: “During Rev. Albertson’s ministry, the church was once again indebted to
his “Silent Partner” who provided $750 for the construction of the religious
education and social activities building.”

1940: New Smyrna’s population was 4402.

1942: Rev. Harry A. Rhodes, a Mission Pastor, became the Stated Supply
Pastor and served for one year, November 11, 1942 to October 5, 1943. In
1943, the Presbytery requested each church to provide a history of their
congregation. Rev. Rhodes compiled a 5 page narrative that provided valuable
information about the early days of the church.

1947: “New Smyrna” became “New Smyrna Beach” when the city annexed
Coronado Beach.

August 20, 1947: The congregations of the New Smyrna Beach Presbyterian
and Congregational churches had become small and the town was

"over-churched”. First Presbyterian voted 13 to 11 to become ‘Federated’, acting
under the agreed to ‘Articles of Agreement of the Federated Church’, to meet
and work together “that the Kingdom of God might better be served”.

This period of the history of the New Smyrna Presbyterian Church comes to an
end.




HISTORY OF THE FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH OF NEW SMYRNA BEACH
PERIOD V
THE FEDERATION
1947 - 1953

1947 - 1953: The Presbyterian and Congregational churches retained their
denominational identity throughout the time the Federation existed and separate
services were held at the United Church of Christ Congregational Church
located on the northwest corner of Washington Ave. and Faulkner Street.
Finances and all revenue from both denominations were under the control of the
Federation’s Board of Directors in a single account. First Presbyterian
maintained ownership of the Magnolia Street property during this period,
although the pews had been sold for $400 to provide funds to maintain the
building’s roof. “During the time of the Federation, the church became self-
supporting and no longer needed Mission aid”

1950: New Smyrna Beach population was 5775.

November 4, 1953: Trustees of the Presbytery of Southeast Florida, having met
with the Presbyterian congregation of the Federated church on October 18™,
presented four recommendations to the Presbytery at its West Palm Beach
meeting pertaining to the future of the congregation. The Presbytery adopted
these recommendations, as follows: “The $35 monthly rent from the Manse be
redirected for improvements to the empty Magnolia St. Sanctuary; Do not sell or
rent the Magnolia property; Because of the constantly recurring unrest and
dissatisfaction of the Presbyterians in the Federated church, we recommend
The Federated Church Presbyterians return to Magnolia St. and re-establish
their separate Presbyterian Church; Cancel the Terms of the Federation or
rewrite it to recognize the current status.” As there was no Presbyterian Pastor
for the Federated Presbyterian Congregation, the Trustees appointed Rev. E. A.
Finn as Moderator of the Session

November 20, 1953: “Meeting and acting under the Articles of Agreement of the
Federated Church, the members of the Presbyterian Church of New Smyrna
Beach did overwhelmingly vote to withdraw from the Federated Church and to
re-establish the activities of this church in this community”



December 3, 1953: “The Joint Committee of the Federated Church moderated

by Dr. Tuttle, of the Florida Congregational Christian Conference, and with Rev.
E. A. Finn from the Southwest Presbytery and Moderator of the Session, voted

that the dissolution of the Federated Church would be effective as of December
31, 1953, with joint efforts ceasing as of that date forward.”

This period of the history of the New Smyrna Presbyterian Church comes to an
end.




HISTORY OF THE FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH OF NEW SMYRNA BEACH
PERIOD VI
THE RETURN HOME
1953 - CURRENT

January 3, 1954: The fourth organization of the New Smyrna Presbyterian
Church came about as follows: “The first service of the newly reconstituted
independent First Presbyterian Church of New Smyrna Beach was held with
Interim Pastor, The Rev. Dr. Walter L. Ritter, delivering the message. The
congregation of 41 members, which included members returning from the
Federated Church, were sitting on chairs borrowed from a local funeral home as
the pews had been sold to provide funds to repair the Sanctuary’s roof”. Rev. Dr.
Ritter served as interim pastor until May 1954. A member’s Mother donated
money to paint the outside of the church and it was painted white.

January 1954: During the five (5) year duration of the Federation, only $250,
(which came from Federation’s funds) was spent on the Magnolia Sanctuary,
and that was for the purchase of pews. Thus the reason for the degradation of
the building. “For the purpose of restoring the rundown condemned Sanctuary,
and for its maintenance and upkeep, a Presbyterian Building Fund was
established.” “Because we were considered a ‘new’ church by the Presbytery,
the church was given a $1500 grant by the Synod. The funds were used to
refinish the floors, paint the walls of the Sanctuary, install pews, and redecorate
and furnish the Manse.”

February 6, 1954: “The Clerk (of Session) reported that upon recommendation
of Dr. Ritter, Moderator, and Dr. W. K. C. Thomson, Chairman Committee
Ministerial Relations, Southeast Presbytery, that he had contacted Dr. Weaver
Keith Eubank, Pastor of the Ninth Presbyterian Church of Philadelphia, Pa. by
telephone. That on behalf of this church invited Dr. and Mrs. Eubank to come to
New Smyrna Beach on February 21, 1954, with Dr. Eubank to conduct the
Sabbath Services on that date.”

February 17, 1954: Congregational meeting nominated a five (5) member
Pastor Nominating Committee.



February 28, 1954: Congregational meeting to consider the Nominating
Committee’s report as follows: “We, the Nominating Committee, being on
sufficient grounds, well satisfied with the ministerial qualifications of the Rev.
Weaver K. Eubank, D.D. do hereby unanimously recommend him to this
congregation for election as Pastor.” (signed Jack M. Cole, Secretary). The
congregational vote was unanimous.

April 20, 1954: Although the dissolution of the Federated Church would be
effective as of December 31, 1953, the equitable settlement of the joint
properties and monies had not been resolved. At the Presbytery meeting on this
date, The Board of Trustees of the Southeast Presbytery recommended in item
3: “Whereas: Six or seven attempts were made in conference with the State
Superintendent of Congregational Churches of Florida, to make an equitable
settlement of the property and money held by the Federated Church of New
Smyrna Beach; and Whereas: All these attempts resulted in failure to agree on a
fair distribution of such property and money, therefore we recommend to
Presbytery that we leave the final distribution of the property and money entirely
in the hands of the State Superintendent of Congregational Churches of Florida;
to give to the Presbyterian Church of New Smyrna Beach what share of the
property and money now held in the name of the Federated Church to which he
feels they, in the name of Christ and in His spirit, are entitled.” The
recommendation was adopted.

April 26, 1954: Included in the church’s extensive file on the Federation
Dissolution, the final communication on the dissolution issue came from Mr. E.
A. Finn, Presbytery’s Stated Clerk, to Rev. William N. Tuttle from the Florida
Congregational Christian Conference, informing Mr. Tuttle of the Presbytery’s
Board of Trustees adopted recommendation.

May 11, 1954: Dr. “Weaver Keith Eubank became the first
permanent Pastor of the newly reconstituted independent First
Presbyterian Church of New Smyrna Beach. Mrs. Grace Eubank
“‘became a strong leader, worked with the church children, and
taught Latin at the high school.”

1954: Modern ‘Presbyterian Women Association’ chapter was
established.



June 1955: Purchased the building just north of the church for Sunday school
classes and a Church Office.

1957: Program started to raise $25,000 to renovate the Education Center; pay
the mortgage; and for a New Sanctuary Building.

1960: New Smyrna Beach population was 8781. Church membership was 398.

1960: New property adjacent to the parking lot was purchased and named
Magnolia House.

September 28, 1960: Ground was broken on the south lot of the Magnolia
property on September 28, 1960 for the church’s new Sanctuary Building to
replace the original Magnolia Street Sanctuary dedicated in 1934. Mr. J. H.
Cunningham donated all the brick for the
Sanctuary building.

March 12, 1961: Dr. Eubank dedicated the new
Sanctuary Building, our current Sanctuary. The
architect was Mr. Henry Whitworth of Winter Park,
Florida, and the contractor was Mr. W. S. Martin of
Cocoa Beach, Florida. Contract amount for
construction was $74,226. At the dedication, Mr.
Whitworth gave the church a seven foot Celtic
cross to hang over the communion table. As of
June, 2024, that cross hangs in Eubank Hall on the ) S
back wall of the platform. : & e

May 25, 1963: Dr. Eubank died just prior to his planned retirement from First
Presbyterian Church of New Smyrna Beach.

October 20, 1963: Rev. Heston Milligan was installed as pastor.

March 12, 1967: The New Education Building with Eubank Hall, the Robinson
Memorial Chapel and the Albertson Memorial Library was dedicated.

August 1968 — July 1976: The pulpit was supplied by six (6) pastors during this
period.

April 1973: The new church Carillon’s were donated by the family of Anton
“Tony” H. Boll and dedicated to “The Glory of God and the Service of Man in
Loving Memory of Anton”. There is a plaque in the Sanctuary’s Narthex.



1975: Stained glass windows installed in the Chancel.
July 4, 1976: Dr. William Chegwin became Pastor.

1979: Church membership had outgrown the Sanctuary’s main floor 308 seat
capacity, so chairs were setup in the aisles. Worship was moved to Eubank Hall
(including the pews) while a balcony was added to the Sanctuary to seat an
additional 100.

1983: William Mitchel Newman, from Michigan, formalized the church member’s
weekly men’s volunteer building and grounds maintenance group and it was
named Newman’s Crewmen. That group, now Newman’s Crew for men and
women, continues today, 2024.

September 4, 1990: The 611 Magnolia Street home property, built in 1941, was
purchased for $100,000 from Edna & Joe Vick of Danville, Kentucky to be used
for Church ministries.

2000: “Alarge garage was constructed on the 611 Magnolia property in total by
Newman’s Crewmen to house all the maintenance equipment stored throughout
the church and the church van.” The building was dedicated in loving memory of
Bill Newman, who had died in 1998 before the building was completed.

December 4, 2001: Rev. William Chegwin retires after serving as pastor for 25
years, the longest serving pastor for the First Presbyterlan Church of New
Sm WL ! !




2001 - 2004: Rev. Beverly Richardson (12/4/2001 - 8/1/2002) and Dr. Robert E.
Palmer (8/1/2002 — 6/2/2004) served as interim pastors.

July 1, 2004: Rev. David M. Keazirian was installed as pastor.
2009: Celebrate Recovery Chapter established.
February 21, 2015: Rev. David M. Keazirian his Pastorship.

July 12, 2015: Rev. Robert Ward was installed as interim pastor and served
until September 22, 2017.

September 2017: Rev. Robert Anderson served as a bridge pastor from
September 2017 until December 2017.

February 25, 2018: Rev. George Head was installed as pastor.

Spring 2018: Bicycle Ministry was established by Chuck Nighswonger to
refurbish donated used bicycles that were then donated to various charities and
schools as needs were identified.

2021: The Presbyterian Women Association chapter was re-activated.

2022: PB&J (Peanut Butter & Jelly) was organized to provide a lunch twice a
week to the homeless in the area.

June 2024: Church membership is 163.

The following is an excerpt from ‘History of the New Smyrna Beach Presbyterian
Church’ written by the church’s pastor, Rev. Harry A. Rhodes in 1943:

“The growth and development of the church has been interrupted by a change of sites
and of organization. At times there has been dissension. Quite a number of its former
members are still resident in New Smyrna Beach and vicinity. Some of them are
members of other churches. However, the church has been a means of grace to many.
It has been served by able ministers of the Word. Letters from former members tell of
their affection for the church and happy memories of its fellowship. It is the only
Presbyterian church in the city and no other nearer than Daytona Beach, Deland, and
Titusville. Someday the New Smyrna Church will be self-supporting and have a large
new church building. Then the members will say, “Others have labored and we have
entered into their labors.” Meanwhile, the church in each period of its history serves its
own generation. Each year there will be, in New Smyrna, a large number of winter
residents whose presence and help are always much appreciated. May the Word be
always truly preached and taught as in the past, and may leaders of the Lord’s own
choosing be raised up to carry on the work with ever increasing power and



momentum. May the Lord add daily (weekly, yearly) to the New Smyrna Beach
Presbyterian Church “such as should be saved.”

NOTED: Many of the quotes on the early history of the ‘Union Church’ were
reported by Robert P. Campbell, an employee of The Works Project
Administration (WPA) in 1940, doing a Historical Records Survey — Church
Inventory. He interviewed Mrs. Zilia Wilson Sweett, Great Granddaughter of
John and Jane Sheldon, the Jane Sheldon and family that donated the land for
the Union Church in 1875. Mr. Campbell’s Documents #1 can be found at this
website: https://www.floridamemory.com/items/show/252151?id=1

Robert P. Campbell, from the Works Project Administration (WPA), completed a
second Historical Records Survey — Church Inventory covering The First
Presbyterian Church from 1926 to 1940. He interviewed 5 officers of the church,
Mr. & Mrs Speidel, Miss Francis & Miss Sarah Seaton, and Mrs. H. L. Houghton.
Several quotes from that survey were included. Mr. Campbell’s Documents #2
can be found at this website: https://www.floridamemory.com/items/show/252111

Steve Waldrup, from the Works Project Administration (WPA), completed
surveys of the Methodist and Episcopal Churches.

Many other quotes are from Rev. Harry A. Rhodes’ document dated May 19,
1943, Stated Pastor at NSB Presbyterian Church for one year, Nov.1942-Oct.
1943, the Edwards Felmet Family, Anonymous’ narrative history documents, and
research on Ancestry.com.

Linda Hulvershorn of The New Smyrna Museum of History provided access to
their records on local church history, and copies of several documents were
obtained.

Several photographs are from History of New Smyrna Beach, Florida
publications provided by our church member Jim Kennedy.

The New Smyrna Beach Library, The Library of Congress, The Central
Presbyterian Presbytery of Florida, and Ancestery.com’s findagrave.com.

Excerpts of “Memories” from the NSB Presbyterian Church’s “Celebrating 125
years serving God and Community” 1875 — 2002 Booklet publication.

Redfin Realty for an airborne photo of Magnolia St. that included the church.

Charles Henry Coe’s document about his father, William Coe’s relationship with
Rev. Selleck

“Founded in Faith: Two New Smyrna Beach Congregations turn 140” from the


https://www.floridamemory.com/items/show/252151?id=1
https://www.floridamemory.com/items/show/252111

2015 Daytona Beach News Journal Article by Sandra Frederick, Correspondent
CONTENT RESEARCHED & COMPILED IN 2024 BY JOHN L. BROS
CONTRACT FOR THE ‘CHURCH OF CHRIST’ PROPERTY
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THIS INDENTURE, made and entered into this twenty sixth day of #
#yvil, A, D, one thousand eight mndred and seventy five, between Jane
®heldon, Martha F. Sheldon, Frank W, Sams, and Zelis Sams, heirs at
Yew of the late Jomn D. Bheldon, of the County of Volusia and State
of Florida, parties of the first part, and Edmund K. Lowd,Rhodolpims
Sheldon, Franeis Fox, and Charles G. Sellick, as Trustees of a church
to be uso::hsroafter named parties of the second part:

WITNESSETH, that the said parties of the first part for and in
consideration of the sum of one dollar, to them in hand paid by the
said parties of the second part, at and before the ensealing and deliw
ery of these presents, the receipt whereof is he reby acknowledged,have
granted, bargained, sold, aliened , remised, released, conveyed and
confirmed, and by these presents do grant, bargain, sell alien, con-
vey and confirm unto the said parties of the secgndrpategs as afore-
said, and their successors forever, All the following lot, tract,or
parcel of land lying and being in the County of Volusia, and State of
Florida, known and described as follows, 81l that certain plet of
land in the Town of New fiyrna, bounded and described as follows, viz;
Beginning on the division line bétween the property of the heirs of
John D, Sheldon and the Dougherty tract so called, as a point on said
line formed by the intersection of a line drawn at right anglés there-
with and which ;-iéht angle line passes at a distance of (20)twenty
feet southwesterly from the most westerly corner of a church now being
erected; thence south easterly along said right angle line (80) eighty
feet, thence northeasterly parallel to said division line (1I00) one
hundred feet, thence Northwest at right angles to said division line
(80) eighty feet, and thence southwest along said division line (100)

one hundred feet, to place of beginning. Said lands and the building
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thereon to be held by the said trustees and their successors for the
use of the inhabitants of New Smyrna as a pla&e of religious worship @
for the Presbyterian, the Methodist, the Protestant Episcopal, and the
Baptist churches, and to be used by any minister of the aforesaid de-
nominations who may be present at any time that worship may be held ,
and in case there shall be at any tim$ ministers of more than one de-
nonination above named present, the aforesaid trustees or their suc-
cessors shall decide who shall use said edifice, But they shall
divide the time equally each year between the above denominations pro-
vided there shall be ministers of each present who can occupy the same
and in case of the death or resignation of eighérthe aforesaid trstee
the remaining three shallfill the vacancy, but if they neglect to do
so for the space of one year then the regular attendants at said churd
male and female of full age shall by vote fill the vacancy. Togetheg
with all and singular the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances,
thereunwvo belonging or in anywise appertaining and the reversion and
reversions , remainder and remainders, rents , issues and profits thee
of, and also all the estate, right, title interest dower and right of
dower, property possession, claim and demand whatsoever, as well in

law as in equity of the said parties of the first part of in and to

the same, and every part and parcel thereof with the appurtenances.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid bargained premises, to ether
with all and singular the rights, members, tenements, hereditaments
and appurtenances to the same belonging unto the said Trustees,par-
ties of the second part, and their successors, for the uses as afo re-

said, mentioned, in fee simple, and the said parties of the firast part



Trustees and their successors that they are lawfully sized of said
premises as of fee and have good and lawful right to sell and convey
the sa.e and that they will and their heirs, executors and administra-
tors shall forever warrant and defend the title unto the said Trustees
and their successors of the second part against the claim of any and
all persons whomsoever lawfully claiming the same,

In testimony whereof, the said parties of the first part, have
hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals the day and year

first above written.

JAME SHELBON (Seal)
Edmd K. Lowd ( Seal)
Victoria Lowd (Seal)

Rodolphus S, Shaldon(Seal)
Martha F, Sheldon (Seal)
Frank W, Sams (Seal)
Zelia W, Sams (Seal)

Signed, sealed, and delivered
in the presence of us,

Geo, F. Neils (L.S.)

H. S. Rideout (L.S.)

Know all men by these presents that I ,, Marhta F, Sheldon,
wife of the above named Rodolpmms S. Sheldon, do by these presents
made and executed by me separate and apart from my said husband and
in the presence of George J. Alden, a Judicial Officer of the State,
acknowledge and declare that I did make myself a party to the fore-
going deeds of conveyanoe for the purpose of relinquishing my right
of dower in and to the land in said conveyance described and granted,
and that said relinquishment and renunciation of dower was and is made

freely and voluntarily and without any compulsionm, cons traint, appre-



In witness whereof, I have hereunto subscribed my name and af-
fixed my seal this twenty sixth day of April A, D. one thousand eight
hundred and seventy five, Martha F, Sheldan (L.S.)
State of Florida,

County of Volusia.

To all whom it may concern , be it known that on thés twenty six®
day of April, A. D, 1875, personally appeared before me the above
named Martha F, Sheldon , who being at the time separate and apart
from her husband, Rhodolphus S, Sheldon, did then and there make and
execute the foregoing acknowledgement her name being with her own
hands subscribed and her seal affixed in my presence,

Witness my name at New Smyrna the day and year above written,

George J. Allden (seal)

Justice of the Peace,
State of Florida,

Volusia County , to wit ¢

On this day personally appeared before me Jane Sheldon, Edmund
K. Lowd, Victoria Lowd, Rhodolphus S, Sheldon , Martha F. Sheldon,
Frank W, Sams, and Zelia Sams, to me well known and acknowledged that
they executed the foregoing deed for the purposes therein expressed,
whereupon it is prayed that the same may be recorded. |

In witness whereof I have hereunto affixed my hand and seal this
twenty sixth day of April A, D, 1875,

George J. Allden,

¥Yiled for record R4th May 1875 Justice of the Peace,



S TATE OF PLOR I DA

’

COUNTY OF VOLUS IA

I, James B, Jordan , Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for
said County and State, do hereby certify the above and foregoing to

be a true and correct copy of the original record of a certain deed

from Jane Sheldon, et al., to E , K. Lowd, et al., Trustees, as appeas

from the original record thereof in my office in Deed Book No, B pige
446, 447 and 448,

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand and the seal of

said Circuit Court this 5th day of November, A, D,
S0 D
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SHELDON FAMILY MEMBERS THAT DONATED PROPERTY
FOR THE CHURCH OF CHRIST (UNION CHURCH)

{

JOHN SHELDON'’S ESTATE

FRANCIS “FRANK” SAMS RHODOLPHUS &
MARTHA SHELDON



ROBERT CAMPBELL’S 1940 WPA NSB PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH SURVEY
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RIAN CHURCH ON CORONADO BEACH IN 19
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[MAGNOLIA STREET CHURCH PROPERTY BUILDING PLATS IN 1934, 1961, & 1967

MARCH 1934
ORIGINAL SANCTUARY DEDICATED

HOUSE ON THE
PROPERTY BECAME
‘THE MANSE', THE
PASTOR'S HOME

THE MAGNOLIA STREET PROPERTY WAS
DONATED BY MR. & MRS WILLIAM H. BERGER

ORIGINAL SANCTUARY|

MAGNOLIA STREET

MARCH 1961
CURRENT SANCTUARY DEDICATED

CURRENT SANCTUARY

THE MAGNOLIA STREET PROPERTY WAS
DONATED BY MR. & MRS WILLIAM H. BERGER

MAGNOLIA STREET

MARCH 1967

THE MAGNOLIA STREET PROPERTY WAS
DONATED BY MR. & MRS WILLIAM H. BERGER

MAGNOLIA STREET

CURRENT SANCTUARY
CLASSROOMS, EUBANK FELLOWSHIP HALL, I BALCONEY ADDED - 1919' :
ALBERTSON LIBRARY, & ROBINSON CHAPEL S o
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" CHURCH BE BUILT

Obtained By Berger
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CONTAINS 4 LOTS

Construi:tion. Be Started as Soon as
Plans Ca'n4Be Completsd

and Accepted

=Phat
Smyrna will soon have a new church
home, which will prowde the congre-

worship and all other church activi-
ties, is assured with the announce~
ment made today by Rev. M. F.
VUsner that the local church has ac~

Slam T. Berger, four lots
west on Magnolia street between An-
Hdrews and Anderson streets.

. The gift includes the corner lot aft
the northeast corner of Magnolia and
Anderson streets, including the
house, formerly known as ““The Ken-
tuecky,” and the bungalow on the
cast end of the lot facing on Ander-
son street: The gift also includes
the thre elots to the north facing
Macnolia street. This' tract provides
the Presbyterian church with a tract
fecing 200 feet on Magnolia and 150
feet on Anderson street.

According to the pastor, Rev.
Lsner. construction work on the
' elmrch home will begin as soon as
: 1 haver been
ed by the Tochal church, which
self supporting and is not
“maintained by the church
on board. The loeal church has
pw on hand a fund of $1,400 with
fmich to begin the building of the
rchn structu re.

DURING THIS YEAR

Site on Magnolia Street .

A" o ~_iocation was too far
the Presbyterians of New 1 :

gation with a permanent place for.

. auired, by gift of Mr. and Mrs. Wil—;
facing

M.

considered and .

of the oldest church organizitiohs in
"New Smyrna,-the first church having
- ibeen established here 56 years ago.

ii' The Bresbytenan chur@bh is  one

1It. was @ne of the four comxe@g'atmns :
tjwhlch went together ba ﬁ those
of the vﬂlage v the

t'early
Union church, for which a church
1building was built at the corner of
I'Faull«mm street and Washington
hvenue on the site now occupied by
!h;he First Baptist church. The four
‘congregations  which formed the
" Union chuvch at that time, besides
the Presbyterian, were the Episcopal,
Baptist and Methodist.

The Presbyterian intevest in that-
_chureh « affiliation was maintained
luntil seven years ago, when the Pres-
byterian chapel was built at New
_Smyrna Beach. This building served
‘as the church home until about a
‘year ago, when it was decided the
removed from
Ehe homes of members of the congre-
g;atlon, s0 the place of worship was
'moved to this side of the river and
the congregation has since been using
the old city hall at the corner of
Live Qak street and Liytle avenue.

The membership of the church has
tripled during the last year and has
ibecome one of the most active church
organizations in the city. The con-
aregation has outgrown the accomi-
modations provided by the oid city
hall building, making necessary some
‘change to provide larger guarters.

Rev. Mr. Usner says the new church
home will be completed within the
next year and the loecation will be
‘convenient for al members of the
congregation.




ORLANDO SENTINEL
ARTICLE ANNOUNCING
THE MARCH 12, 1961
DEDICATION OF THE
FIRST PRESBYTERIAN
CHURCH OF NEW
SMYRNA BEACH’S NEW
SANCTUARY BUILDING

Building 1
Costs Top
$380.000

By NORMAN WOLFE
m.l Staff

NEW SMYRNA BEACH—
First Presbyterian Church
will ‘dedicate its new 380 000,
building Sunday.

Services at 11 a.m, and 4
p.an. will mark the erv-
‘ance with the 4 p.m. service
to] be the dedicatory - one.
Th:are will:be no 8:30. o8 -
‘service  but  Sunday .’ school
will be at 9:45 s.xo.

The $80.000 figure is a

an ap—

proximate one. Actually, ac-{

cording  to Dr. Weaver XK.
Eubank, pastor, the ‘overail
costs including furnishings
will probably runhigher.

o THE CONT RACT » amount
for construction was $74.226
for the 346 seat air con-
gditioned church.

Contractor was W. S. Mar-
tin of Cocoa Beach and.the
architect was  Henry W!‘ut—
worth of Winter Park.

The building, is colonial
styie throughout and. in ad-
dition to the main chamber

has vestment rooms, rest
rooms, sunken organ Shan-
. cel, white pews and ~other

features.

Conntruction began Sept.
28 following an earlier
ground bhreaking ceremony..

Funeral 8érvices in the old
sanctuary were held recent-
1y, marking  the end of an
era in ldcal church history.

THE picturesgue old cha-
pel was -dedicated, .de bt
free, in 1934 and came to be
rrovwr as the miracle
Church because of that fact.

Several visxt;ing officials
will take part 1n the .dedica-
taon service.

The -Rev. Dt Charl“ i
Martz, Lauderdale by the
Sea, will preside and make
the declaration of dedica-
tion. He is the  executive
secretary of the Florida Sy-

Earl Keltz, TFort
Synod director of
and relations, and a

Eider
Pierce,
finance

former moderator .- of -the
Florida Synod, will lead the
invacation.

The  Revy. Walter Ritter,

pastor of Yoder Memorial
Church in Howey in .

Fills, will lead the call tol
worship. ) 3
DR. RITTER . was the;

the |

DR: WEAVER. K. "EUBANK

v« « Church pastor
will be offered by Mrs. J.
Morton  Douglas, moderator
of the Florida Synod, Mrs.
Douglas’ father, Dr. G. V.
Albertson, was pastor when|
the former sanctuary was
built and dedicated.

The Rev. Calvin Trois of;
New Smyrna Beach will read:
the . scripture _and 'Dr. FHan-i
def. H. Brown., pastor ofl
First Presbyterian . Churchi
ih St. Cloud and former mod-
erator ‘of the Florida Synod,| i
will preach the sermon.

Dr. «Euabank will give the!
benet_iic’t{on. LT '
WHITWORTYH, who gave!

the -church a seven-foot Cel-
tic cross to hang over the'
communion table and Mar-

tin are scheduled t6 take part
along with Mrs.

Felmet, “president ‘of ' the

church board of trustees and}

Dr. William Lightner, ses-
sion chairman of the use of
buildings comanittee.

Followz.ng the dedication
servdxc; i‘g’xere will be a, cov-
ere: FLpDeT. served b
the Wome“‘ s Assmo. unde¥
Mrs. Allan NMcDougall, pres-
ident, and Mrs. Ray Mc-
Quarrie, chairman of  the
circle of the month, ior fam-
ilies and [ ‘friends’ "of the
church in addition to the out~
of-town guests.

Dr.’ . Emnbank announced
pews in the old; sanctuary
have been purchased by the
- Baptist . Church in Qak Hill
and will be dehvered March

J’ames B.t

18.

moderator and the first to’
hold communion service. in

the reactivated church here
Jan. 3, 1854.

The Rev. Robert Jones,
moderator of the WNWorth
Florida Presbytery and pas-
tor of the South IL.ake Shore
Presbyterian Church in Cler-
mont, will lead the words of
dedication.

The praver of dedication

f
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A BRIEF HISTORY OF THE PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, F=@ SMYRNA BEACH, FLORIDA.

The first organization of the New Smyrna Presbyterian Church was effected in
1875 under the direction of the Rev. Charles G. Sellock. BHe was received into tho
Zast Florida Presbytery, Synod of Atlantic, in March, 1876 from thc Presbytery of
Cairo, Synod of Illinois. He was moderator of the East Florida Presbytery in larch,
1879, The minute of his death was read st = meeting of Presbytery, April 5, 188k,

It seems that for a time he was Commissioner of Public Shcools in Florida until
the "carpet Baggers" confiscated the school funds. As a home missionary he was most
faithful and endured many hardships in his travels. One account of his work 1s as
follows: "Rev. lir, Sellock spread himself over a territory on the Eelifax River,
thirty miles long and sixteen miles wide with three principal centres of operation..
4% one of these, New Smyrna, he has just completed a commodius churéh edifice and
this he has accomplished during intervals on horscback over trackless ground." Rev,
JoKe Wight in his Historical Notes of the Presbytery, says: "Up to this time, the
Presbytery of Bast Florida consisted of six churches-two in Jacksonville, onc in St.
lugustine, and one at New Smyrna, together with the church at Mary Esther, which
with its pastor, Rev. J. Newton, was transferred by the Gemeral Asscmbly of 1881,
from the Presbytery of Austin, Texas, to this presbytery".

Rey. P.He Fowler in an article on the work in Florida written from San latco in
Pebruary, 1876, wrotc as follows: "Rev. Mr. Sellock, the enterprising missionery at
Smyrna on the Atlantic coast, was prevented by sickness from attending the mecting
of Presbytery but wrote, 'We have dedicated our church edifice; though not yet com—
pleted, it is comfortable and pleasant. We organized a church of scven members, on
which occasion sixteen sat down et the lordls Table. It was the first Communion ser-
vice of a Protestant church in this part of the land. We expcet to have preaching
Yerc twice a month, a Bible class and Sunday School cvery week. At Smyrne, we have
contributed $20, for home missions. The people ask $200. from abroad towards the
support of a minister. They hope to kecp him from starving if this amount can be sc-
curced, **

The Presbyterian Historical Society with offices in the Withcrspoon Bld%g.,
Philadelphia, is custodian of threec wolumes of minutes of the East Florilda Presby-
tery, Synod of Atlantic. Mr. Guy S. Klett, Rescarch Historian, reported as follows:
"In the minutes of the meeting of Presbytery, dated, January 18, 1877, the following
sppears: 'The Harrative of the Churehes was then rosumed. Mr. We.H. Coc was heard in
reference to the church at New Smyrna. An interesting letter was read from Reve lir.
Selleck, from which it appears that a church with rather liberal crecd has been
formed to mect the conditions of the peoplc, end a housc of worship crected and
nearly finished!",

At the mecting of tho Presbytery of Bast Floride in Moy, 1877, we quotc from \

=

the Narrative on the State of Religion as follows: "The church at Yew Smyrne was or-
ganized two years ago by Rev.Charles G.Selleck with scven membors, bub it having at
first, assumed no particular form of church govermmont,it was not rccognized by Pres-
bytery till a fow weeks since,when two of the members werc constituted Elders;one of
them was prosent to represent the church at the mecting of Presbytery in Januory,last.
This must have been lr.W.H.Coe who is mentioned aboves
In the minutes of the General Assembly,Prosbyterien Church,U.S.A.,reports for
the Tew Smyrna Church arc given from 1877 to 1884 inclusive. During that time six
werce received on cxsmination and elcven by certificate.The average membership was
twelve.Therc were six adult baptisms and two baptisms of children. The average S«S.
attendance was 23 (ranging from 15 to 38).) Contributions were as f ollows:congrega-
tional cxponsos,Bilio.(total for 3 yrs.);miscellancous,$150.(1yr.)shome missions,$e5.
(total for 2 yrs.); forcign missions,$6.003General Assembly,$1.00. y
_ After the dcath of Mr. Sclleck no report was mede of the church organization.
However,the building continued to be used for church services. In October,1938,lir.
FoR.Brannan in a brief history of the First Methodist Church of New Smyrna from the
yoar,1895, saids "Services were hold in what was known as the Community Church build-
ing,locascd on theground of the ground wherc the present Baptist Church now standse
A1l the other dcnominations in town werc permitted to slternately usc this same bldgh
3 When the gitt of the present site of the Presbyterian Church on Magnolia Strect
by Mreand Mrs.Vm.: 3erger was announced in March, 1933,1t was stated in an article
in a local nowspapcr that the Prosbyterian Church was one of four congregations
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which went together back in those early days (56 yrs.before) to form the Union Church,
for which n church building was erected at the cormer of Faulkmer Strecet and Vashing-
ton Avenuc on the site now occupiecd by the First Boptist ChurcheThe four congrego~
tions that formed the Union Church ot that time,besided the Prosbhyterian, werc the
Episcopal, Boptist and Mcthodist". In a letter dnted Feb. 2,1933, to lr.George Spei-
dol by Roved.F.Shpcherd,Ph.D.,D.D., lioderator of the Synod of Florida, Presbytorian
Church,U.S.As he wrotes "Our church ws cstoblished in New Smyrna 58 years ago (1875)
and the decd to the ground on which the Boptist Church now stonds was made to four
denominations,OURS BEIFG NAMED PIRST". The Congregationalists come in two years later
(1877), ond while we were therc. We mever gave up our rights and ¥ inolly sold our in-
torost for $50." This was in 1926, From the above it is not clear ns to whother or mtb
there was o Union Church or only o Community Church building which was used by the -dee
nominatigs in turn. Rev.J.K.Wight in his Historical Notes of the Presbytery of Zost
Tlorids says of the New Smyrno Church: "This church was ot first a union church with
scven members. It wos more completely orgenized in 1877, and then had clevon nenbors
with o Sabboth School of thirty". Perhaps the Union Church was dissolved into denom~
inotions which met in turn in the onc building. ‘

The sccond organization of the New Smyrno Beach Presbyterien Church ceme about
o8 follows: On Jon 11,1926, a group of twelve Presbyterions met in tie home of lrse
Greee Garce (now lirs. Pattcoe). It was voted to ask Roved . FoShepherd,DeD. , the Exccu-
tive Seerctary of the Boord of Home Missions for the State of Floride, to engege the
Rov.E.H,Sperov of Hagerstown,Hd.to work in Now Smyrna for threc months. Mr.Sporow be-
zon his work on J an.10,1926. He held a servicc each Sunday morning ot Samsula and at
Coronado Bongh in the afternoon. On Zoster Smxday,Apr.’-t,l%G,the orgenization of the
church was cffected by Dr.Shepherd. Therc were twenty charter members,.ond six ossoc-
iotc memberselirsG.W.Howey and Nr.P.A.Dowling were elected,Ruling Elderse Dre Shepherd
is still living (1943) ond resides ot 2349 S.Ogden St.Denver,Colorados

Rev.Henry E.Brundage of Washington,D.8e proached in New Smyrno on Anr.lltl ond
18th,1926, ond nccepted a call to become the pastor of the nowly organized church
from Oct.lst.Illness prevented and he died on Octe25th.During that month,ReveGeVe
L1bertson,Sundey School missionery, nssisted in organizing a Sundoy School with liiss
Frances Seaton as supcrintendent. Land for thc church and religious ¢ wld—
ing having becn donated by lrs.Elle M. Dotwoiler, o building committec, was appointed
on April 26,1926, ond during the summer the first unit of the proposed new church
plont was begun under the leadership of lirseGrace Gorec and Elder G.VeHowoy ond later
finished with lir.George Speidel in chargce

On the denth of Dr.3rundage an invitation was extended to ToveBRdward Peilorse of
Troy,Pa.,who was spending the winter in Floridn, to become the Stated Supply for &
Pow months,pending the selection of another pastor. ¥r. and lirs.liorsc began work the
first of Novembor and on Nov.9th he was roccived into the Presbytery ~nd appointed
noderator of the Session. Regular services werc held in the unfisished building. As
onc lady guest remsrked,she had tnover seen such high class people worshipning amid
such primitive conditions". The building is now the buff colored rcsidence on the
right of the road proceeding cast from the south bridge and beyond the flower shoy._h____

On Nov.10,1926,the Synod of Florida, neeting at Bustis, approved a plan for the
proposed 3ryan Memorial Bible School for the Synod =t New Smyrna Beache This plan
wos formulatcd in April before when Dr.3rundege raised $0700. by subscription vhich
was afterwards incresased to between three and four thousend dollarss This was Sup-
plementcd by a loan from the Board of Christian Education of the Prosbyterian Church,
and the building referred to above was erccheds Mrslorse continued to serve the
church until the spring of 1927. He now resides (1943) at 313 V.Sixth Street,Zlmire,
7Y« at the ngo of &7. . .

In June,1927,2 Young People's Conference w=s hold in the new building under the
cuspices of the Board of Christian Education and airected by Mrs.Gracc Garecs In
1928 cnother duilding wes bought by the Synod's committec, known &8 the Pavilion,
from funds solicited, to be the sccond wnit of the sshool. In 1931 this building,
now known as the "Pelican", on the advice of the Synodls committee was sold to Rol-
lins College ~nd the school discontinued.This left the New Smyrna Church with the
rocreation nnd church building they had erccted in 1926 upon which was an incumbrance
of £1350. duc the Board of Christien Bducation.Of this amount &70C was roa.li?od when
the building was finally sold.Also the Synodls committoe had on hands sbout $11Q0s
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from the salc of the Pavilion. ;

Following Mr. Morse, the New Smyrna Church was served by Rove JoWe Parkhill,D.D.
frqm Oct. (1927 to Mar.33%,1929; by Rev. Frank ¥. Palmor from Nove. 1929 to June, 1930
ond again in the £all of 1930; by Reve Jemes L. Glenn, D.D. for o fow months during
the winter of 1930=3l. Mr, Palmer died in Foew Smyrna; Dre Parkhill dicd at Winome
lake, Ind., Fobe20,2942; and Mr. Glenn is now pastor of the Presbyterian Church at
Cross Plains, Texe

The next pastor to be called was the Reve Merlin F. Usmer who served from Oct.
15,1931 to Junc 29,1933. He is now (1943) pastor of two Presbyterian churches in ilew
Drleans snd resides at 2901 Constance Ave. During ir. Usmer's pastoratc, Presbytery's
Sormittee on Nationnl Misslons made n survey of the New Smyrna ficld and recommended
thet the Beach site be given up and that the church be re-located across the river in
the down of New Smyrnne. This was done and o temporary meeting place was sccured in
the 833 City Hall at the corner of live Oakr and Lytle Sts. Mr. Usner left in the sum-
mer of 1933, services were discontinued for a time and the second period of the hist-
ory of the Presbyterion Church in New Smyrno came to an end. :

In September, 1933, an effort was made under the leadership of Dr, Francis l.
Tox, pastor of the W. Palm Besch Presbyterion Church snd Dr. Gillette, Secretayy of
the Beard of Missions of the Congregational Church, to unite the Congregational ond
Presbyterian churches of New Smyrna. Articles of Tederation werc drowm up and at one
mecting attended by a few members of the Presbyterian church, federation was agreed
upon, partly because of no place to meet as the city needed the 0ld City Hall for ot-
her purposes and the church furniture had been stored.

- Howevér, after all had returned from the summer vacation, the mombers of the |
church met in the home of Mr. nnd lirs. C.AsEe Asendorf on Nov. 7,1933 mad drev up a
memorinl to $he S.E. Florids Presbytery and to the Synod of Florida, mecting ot Ste
Avgustine in the fall of 1932, be made availsble to the church at oncey in order to -
proceed with building on the Magnolia strcet lots already donated to the church by
lire and Mrse Betger. The memorinl nlso stetcd that the church did no% intend to ask
for an appropriation from the Board of National Missions.

Presbytery in meeting at Winter Haven voted to appoint Reve GoVe Albertson as
moderator of the Session. When the action of Presbytery was reported at a congrega-
tional meeting on Nove24,1933, a Building Committee was appointed with Mr. George
Speidel as chairmane Since representatives of the Young People?s organizations of
Tlorids asked for the $1400., the church relinquished its claim inasmuch as a friend
of lr, Albertson's thereafter known as the "Silent Partner® offered to give a like
amount for the erection of a new church building.

Nr. Speidel not only supervised the erection of the building but did much of the
work himself. The work was begun on Dec.13,1933. The first service in the unfinished
buildine was held on Feb.11,193% and the building was dedicated on Mare.1llth free of
debte Imring the ad-interim, services had been held regularly at lission City. for,
which the church had raised $100. to provide a meeting place. On Tove 12, 1933, Rev.
Alexander Linn, re-opened the Sunday School there with the help of lirm Tannere Mre
Linn azlso organized a Sunday School in the new building in New Smyrna immediately
following the dedication on Mar., 1llth. " , ;

. At a Congregational meeting of Feb. 13, 1934, it was voted to call the Reve GoV,
Albertson as pastor, He was installed on Apre 22, 1934 and served officislly until
Mere31,1941, though not actively from October, 1940. On Apr,1,1941 he became, Pastor,
Emeritus snd resides at Uo# So. Boulevard, Deland, Fla. During bis ministry in 1937,
the church was once again indebted to his "Silent Partner™ who provided #750. for
the erection the religious education and social activities building to the rear of
the church anditorium. '

Frllowing Nr. Albertson's discontinuing of the active pastorate though conbinu~
ing as moderator of the Session, the pulpit was saipplied by the following ministers
in furns Rov.Vm.H,France from Decs,1940 to Feb.,1942; Rev.F.B,Menn of, the United
Brethern Church from March till May, 1941 and again in November of that year; ond the
Revelim,GuReagle, D Deduring June and July end again in October, 1941l Mrsliann now resider
at Westerville,Ohio, and Dr. Resgle in Delend. Although Mre Frencol's pame is still
on the roll of Presbytery, no address is known. At aifferent times also the pulpit ha
been supplied by resident Presbyterian ministers who have retired,vizs,Dr. WneXe
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Z_ci.gler of the Presbyterian Church, U.S. and Rev. JeJs Renkin whose son-in-law, Rev.
HeJe Mclver resident at Coronado Beach has also given assistance.

Through corrcspondence with the Board of Foreign Missions by the Reve John Ve
Nocl, pastor of the Prosbyterizn Church of Rockledge, Flae, the Reve Villiam I.3lair
DeDe,missionary on furlough from Kores, was secured as Stated Supply of the New Smyr-
na Church. Dre and Mrs. Blair arrived in December, 1941 and greztly endesred them-
selves to the congregation. Unfortunately, lirs. Blair who had been in poor health for
501:;3-13';81‘5. died in New Smyrna in April,1942, Dr. Blair continued to supply the ghurch
until June.

During the summer and fall of 1942, the pulpit was supplicd by Rev. Chass P.
Foreman,D.D. of DeLand. Mrs. Forcman usually came with hims, Their services were much
appreciated by the church snd several new members were received. In October, 1942,
Reve Harry A. Rhodes, D.D, and Mrs. Rhodes, also missionaries on furlough from Xorea,
tame to New Smyrna for onc years

Additional items to this historical narrative may be appended as followss taen
the church was reorgesnized in ¥ovember, 1933, the number of charter members is given
as twelve. Five trustces were elected at the Congregational meeting on ifowv. 2k,1933,
but the four elders were carricd over from the former orgsnizations From Easter Sunw—
day, Apr.4,1926, twelve different members have been elected to the eldership, the
largest number at any one time being six in Doc., 1933. The names of the ’I‘\vo’,l.vc(.{\.pos-
tles,shall we say?) and their terms of office are as follows: Geost.Howey, Ap¥e ,1926
t411 Mer 19293 P.A.Dowling,Apr.,1926 till Mer,1935 and from Mare,1936 $i11 Mar.,190
Philip Merz,Jr. from Sopt.,1928 till June,1933; Jemes W. Putmem from Jean.,1928 till
Junc, 1933; C.A.E.Asendorf from Dece,1932 till Nov.,1935; liiss Francls Scaton from
Dces,1932 till liar.,1940; Nrs. F.N.Palmer from Dec.,1932 till lare,1935; J.SeDunlop
from Dec.1932 +111 Mer.,1933: Robert R.Dempsey,lier.,1935 till Octe,1938; F.P.Barthol-
omew from Mare,1938 till Mar.,1939; and thc prosent two elders, lire Otis Werc from
liare, 1935 and Z,D.Schofield from Octel94le , . . el

_The Clerks of Session in turn have been P.A.Dowling, Philip ilarz, MNrs. Serah C.
Palmer (tcmporary), Miss Frances Scaton, ReveGeV.Albertson (temporary) and E.D.{.Scof-
ield, For scveral years from Dec.,1933, RevedsC. Garrett,D.D. ,missionary from .Ghlna
rosignod, was asked to sit with the Sessiom in an advisory capacity. He and lrs.Gar-
ritt for scveral years gave valuable assistence in the work of the church. In, congre-
gational meetings, Miss Sarah Scaton was most frequently elected clerke The mo_d.erators
of the Session in turr have been: B.P.Morse 41526-27; J. W. Parkhill,1927-29:F;;T.Pd—
mer,1929-303J» LeGlenn, 1930-31 ;M. Fo Usner,1931~333 G.V.Albertson,1933«42; and A.GoBeock-
er since 1942. : : ¢ =

Among the church treasurers have been 1irsCeCoDrake, Nr.Philip liarz, and lirs.

ZeBeEomor as troasurer of the Board of Trustcess Jr.H LeHmghton, the present church
" trcasurcr has been serving since 193k, i

In April, 1933, the Session voted that the pastor, Mr. Usner, orga.nizesa. Ai‘ s-
tian Bndeavor Society with the help of Mr.SeJeRobinson and an Intermc.adiate ocliety
at iission City with the help of Mr. W.C.Dennison, However these societies were short
lived as there were not enough young people to keeg then goinge .

At the congregational meeting in March,1929, Miss Sarah Seaton read a rcgor‘ of
the Ladies Missionary-Aid Society, giving its history to dates It seems that lirse
Detweiler and Mrs, Eamer were instrumental in bringing ebout its orgenizations It
Wos organized as a Missionary Society in the Pavilion in March, 1928 with an ptten—
dsance of twelve chorger members. Mrs., Eamer was the first president'and 2 year lgater
lirse Parkhill was elected the second president. There was also an Aid Societys In
the spring of 1933 the two societies held 2 joint meeting and ”agreed to mget;ogﬁﬁg—
. or during the summer. Beginning with Fobruary,1934, the name 'I-Af}.ssionary—md. s use
and Mrs. J.C.Gorritt was elected president. However at this ,_]omt mecting vicoepres-
jdonts ~nd secretary-treasurers were clected for both societiess During the ncxt
thrce months the Missionary Society met geperately but from Junc, 1931+. the nv{nc I-ii;-
sionary-Aid is used for each meeting. It would be difficult to oveaf'est:_.ma.te the value
of this society to the work of the church ingl it wouiddbc jnterosting if a summary

211 the work donc and money raised couldbe compilede
e Since the organization of the church in April,1926. the total m_:un‘ber of members
rocoived is 125 or porhaps a few more. Among present members, seniority belongs: to
lisses Frances and Sarah Seaton who were charter members in 1926, For many years
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.""these g&wo sisters gave liberally of their taients and money as officers of the church

Sunday School and Missi onary-Aid Society. lire and Mrs. George Speidel were associate
members when the church was organized in April,1926 and were received into full mem-

‘hership by letter in Hovember of that year. They have given long and sacrificial ser-

viceg-dirs. Speildel as %he effecient teacher of the Adult Bible Class and as an officer
in the Missionary-Aid Society, and ¥r. Speidel as trustee, builder, chorister and in
meny other wayse. Of the other present members in order of seniority may be mentioned
lire James W.Putnam and Mrs. Helen Osborn who were received &n April and May respect-
ively of 1927. lMr. Putnam wes an elder for a time and Mfs. Osborn when in the city is
alvays helpful in owr church work. We could continue and mention many of the present
membership who are loyal and faithful, It is to be regretted that there aren't more
of them. If all the Presbyterians, past and present, who are now resident here could
be brought into active membership we would have one of the strongest churches in the
citys lMuch of the work of the church has been accomplished by our winter residents
who as associate members have given liberally of their, talents, money and prayerss

The church has been so fortunate in receiving gifts in answer to special needs
that it has sometimes been called the "Miracle Church". In addition to the church
sites donated by Mrs.Detweiler and Mr. and lirs.Bergen and gifts of the "Silent i!artner'
for the present church building and the addition to the rear, other gifts are mentiamed
as follows: a lot on Coronado Beach which the church now holds for sale was given by
Rev.Dr.Porter, sometime pastor of the Presbyterian Church ot Rockledge;additional gifts
of the "Silent Partner" of one and two hundred dollars on seversl occasions; a giftef
$500. by Mrseiiellie Perkins for the pews; the lamps in the church by lir. and lirs.Cede
B.Asendorf; the paano in the auditorium by Mrs.Etta Matthews; the organ from the es-
tate of Miss Nonnie Roynl; the two pulpit chairs by Mrs.D.Hd.Byrum; the clock by lirse
lary Reirs; the Bommunion scrvice set by the lilsses Seaton in memory of their father
who was an eldor; the stove in the rear of the suditorium also by the liisses Scaton;
and within the last yea, the gift of $200. by lir. and Mrs.C.H.Straton to clear tho
debt on the mansec. Other gifts large and small have not been rccorded and some of
them perhaps forgotten, but they arc known to our Heavenly Father who rewards richly
all His children. :

The Mensc came with the lots donatcd by lMre. and Mrs. Berger but with a mortgage
$800, which was increased to $1000. when the bullding was repeired and furnished.This
has gradually been paid off. Another building known as the "Kentucky" on the corner
of Magnolis and Anderson Sts. was torn downe. If the churchgrows in numbers and strengt!
as is hoped this will be the site of the main church bullding of the future.

The growth and development of the church has been interrupted by a change o?
sitos and of organization. At times therec has been dissension. Quitc a number of its
former members are still rosident in New Smyrna and vicinity. Some of them arc mem-
bers of other churches. However, the church has been a means of gracd to mahys It has
been served by sble ministers of the word. Letters from former members vell of their
affection for the churca and happy memories of its fellowship. It is the only Pres-
byterian church in the city znd no other necrer then Daytona Beach, Deland and Titus-
ville, Some day the Mew Smyrna Church will be sclf-supporting and have a largc new
church building. Then the members will say, "others have lasborod and we have oni",cred
into their labors", Me-nwhile, the church in ench period of its history serves its
%wn generation. Bach year there will be in New Snmyrna a large mmber of winter ros-
idents whose presecnce and help mre always much appreciated. Moy the Vord be alwoys
truly pronched and taught as in the past, ond may leaders of the Lord's own choosing
be raised up to carry on the work with ever inereasing power and nomentum. Mﬁy the
Lord ~dd dnily (wockly, yearly) to the New Smyrna Beagh Presbyterion Church such
as should be saved.

Hrorry A. Rhodes

Moy 19, 1943
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Contributed by Betty McDougall (2002)



“‘Allan and | came here in 1946 after he got out of the Canadian Army. We
traveled by train from Toronto with a 6-months-old baby. When we told the
trainmen we wanted to get off at New Smyrna, no one knew where it was. So we
explained that it was somewhere south of Daytona.

We joined the small Presbyterian Church which was at the time a small brown
wooden building where the Education Building is now. The present church is
standing on what was a wooded lot much like the parking lot is now.

One very cold morning | walked carrying my baby from our apartment on Lytle

Avenue to go to church. When | arrived there were only two men, both of them
trying to light the pot-bellied stove. They told me, “Oh, there is no church today,
it's too cold.” One of the men was Bob Russell (the then Pastor), and the other
was Clyde Drew.

The church had very few members at that time. Ruth Eisencoff taught the whole
Sunday school with flannel-board stories.

The Congregational Church (The United Church of Christ Church at Faulkner St.
and Washington Ave.) had a congregation but no Pastor, so we decided to join
forces to become the Federated Church and met at their church building. This
continued for a few years, but we still longed for our own Church.

The small building (Sanctuary) on Magnolia Street had been used for crafts
which made the floor very paint-splashed and dirty. The city had condemned it,
and our situation looked hopeless.

Jim Felmet went to Presbytery and asked if we could open our own Church
again, but they refused saying, “There are not enough Presbyterians in New
Smyrna to warrant a Church being there!”

Undeterred, Mr. Felmet came back to New Smyrna and canvassed the town for
Presbyterians. He got enough signatures (I think about 50% of those needed),
so he to them to Presbytery and got a very grudging OK.

The condemned building had to be scrubbed, cleaned, and sanded. This was
done by the people who wanted to be in the congregation. Tait Endsley’s
mother, who lived on Magnolia Street, donated enough money to paint the
outside of the building. This is the picture you see in the old bulletin.

We had no pews, but we used folding chairs which Settle’s funeral home
graciously loaned us. Tommy Loveland collected the chairs in his truck on
Saturday evening and returned them to the funeral home on Sunday evening.
We eventually bought some second-hand pews.

When we left the other church, we were given only five hymn books, so we had
to struggle to get enough money for more hymnals. Someone gave us a piano.



We had some guest ministers from Old’s Hall. My memory is hazy on this.

| taught a Sunday school class on the screened porch of the minister’s cottage.
Mr. MacArthur built a cement block room on the side of the building which we
used for Sunday school and Church suppers. Jack Golden and | taught Sunday
school there when it was completed.

At last, Dr. Weaver Eubank, a retired minister from Philadelphia, came to be our
minister. He wanted to build a church and was tireless in his efforts to get it
started. He literally “worked ‘till he dropped” serving the Lord.

Every brick used in the new church building was donated by the Abrams family
who owned a brickyard in Georgia. We were growing, so eventually, we bought
an old cement block house next door to the Church and used it for Sunday
school classes.

There are many more memories, but this is enough for now. The Educational
Building came years later, but that is another story.”

Love, Betty McDougall
Notes of Virginia Felmet Harlow Interview - 2002
The time frame of these covered years 1953 to 19609.

Presbytery rep — long meeting — 7pm- 1am: “Big Fight” (about leaving the
Federated church).

The congregation had worshiped with First Congregational as “Federated”, then
left to reorganize as First Presbyterian.

12 people to begin the church (after leaving the Federated Church in 1954): 100
by the time Dr. Eubank came to be preacher. Supply ministers from Old’s Hall in
Daytona Beach.

Virginia Felmet Harlow was the second female Elder of the congregation.

Decide contemporary or traditional design for new Sanctuary. Traditional by one
vote.

Parking lot Anderson Street bought from Christian Science Church.
Mrs. Eubank played the organ, children’s choir, taught Sunday school.

Jim Felmet joined First Presbyterian on July 9, 1969, became Elder immediately.
No one else would be Clerk of Session.

Mickie Ascheri and Barbara C. Lies
Notes of Jack and Jerry Cole Interview — 2002
January 1954: Organized as a congregation; 6 on Session



Jack taught Adult Bible Class for 15 years. Tommy Loveland was painting the
pulpit when Jack first met him.

Dr. Ritter from Old’s Hall came to preach. (Old’s Hall was a Retirement Home for
Ministers and Missionary's in Daytona Beach.)

30-35 members. Dr. and Mrs. Eubank came in early 1954. Now a 12 member
Session.

Mrs. Eubank was a strong leader. Music and children.

Jack became and Elder. At one of the Session meetings, Dr. Eubank asked Jack
to pray. Jack said: “| don’t pray in public.” Dr. Eubank replied, “You do now!”, and
Jack prayed.

Another Dr. Eubank story: One hot Sunday morning the a/c was not working so
Dr. Eubank, in the midst of the sermon called out, “Jack open those windows
over on the right!”, then went back to preaching. “Dr. Eubank always preached
the bible”.

Jack preached on Sunday. He served on Session throughout 25 years. Jerry
was President of Presbyterian Women and sang in the choir, and taught Sunday
school.

Dr. Cluny’s term as Minister was dissolved.

Boyd DelLoarch, an Elder and member of Session was elected Moderator of the
Presbytery. Unusual for a Layman.

Jerry Cole said that from 1949 on her
relationship with and service in First
Presbyterian Church, New Smyrna
Beach were the best part of her life.

Mickie Ascheri and Barbara C. Lies

Marilyn Lindley’s Memories

Photo of Marilyn and Bert Lindley at the
picnic celebrating the 100" Anniversary
of the First Presbyterian Church of New
Smyrna Beach in 1975.

REMINISCENCES FROM 1976-2001



In July of 1976, Dr. William Chegwin, with his young family, came to the First
Presbyterian Church in New Smyrna Beach. He and his wife, Patricia, had 3
boys, 11 year old twins, Doug and Eric, and 7 year old Terry. The effect of Dr.
Chegwin’s love of Christ and people was soon felt in a spiritual way. Newcomers
felt welcome, and members were encouraged. Here are a few memories from
Dr. Chegwin himself:

The “Good News” monthly newsletter was begun. It was compiled and printed
by John Peck, a new member from Philadelphia whose career was that of a
printer. The church bought an old-style printing press and John installed it in one
of the rooms in the church. Every letter was meticulously placed in the proper
slot, and every picture was properly scanned through a metal process. His wife
Ethel collected all the news and the membership statistics were placed on the
top line of a beautifully printed page.

The Youth Ministry was revitalized with the help of Don Moore and his family.
They and other families initiated a “Youth Club” which ministered to the youth of
the church and the community. Each Wednesday evening there was a meal for
about 25 to 30 Junior High and High School
youth and their parents. This Presbyterian
organization had three main elements: music,
Bible study, and games. The youth Club sang
once a month with the Chancel Choir. At this
time the choir was seated on the north and
south sides of the chancel.

Dr. Chegwin, with the help of young families,
organized the membership class for the
youth. A six month course was offered to any
young person 12 years and older who wished to unite with the church. Each
“student” wrote an assay about his/her Christian experience, shared a testimony
before the Session, “preached” a sermon, and conducted the entire worship
service on the last Sunday of the month, which was designated as “Youth
Sunday”.

Sometime is the early 80’s, Pastor Chegwin organized a youth band. The band
included his children and several of their friends from school. In the worship
service, they played special numbers and with the hymns, were accompanied by
Carol Hampton at the organ. Richard Tuten, then Band Director at the High
School and a member of our church, was extremely helpful in this program.

One time Dr. Chegwin was talking with the minister of the Baptist Church in
Daytona Beach concerning the music our band needed for the various



instruments. “It just happens”, said the minister, “that our orchestra leader has
moved on to a different style of music.” So we acquired, free of charge, a
beautiful set of sacred music for each instrument in our little orchestra.

Dr. Chegwin believed that ministry from the pulpit was not enough — that
especially with the older members the personal approach to ministry was more
important even than the formal sermon on Sunday morning. Much time was
spent in daily visitation. Because so many church members were involved in
community affairs, he too became involved. The church was no longer just a
piece of real estate; the church was out where the people were. He became a
member of the Chamber of Commerce, served on the board of Fish Memorial
Hospital, (now Advent Health Hospital) and was Chaplain of the local Air Patrol,
chosen for special recognition on the National level.

For 25 years, First Presbyterian Church was privileged to have Bill Chegwin and
his family as servants of the Lord in our midst. We are glad he has been called
to continue his strong ministry in the community. That continues in 2024.)

Contributed by Paula Hoge
Provided by Sally Altobello, First Presbyterian Church member
My grandmother was born Ruth Mildred Robinson in :
1897, passing in 1978. She was the daughter to the Rev. ;ff‘;“
Jay Forbes Robinson, one of seven children. She moved - '
to 803 Faulkner Avenue in the late 1950's and, as a : w

staunch Presbyterian, she became a member of this )

church (as Ruth Robinson Abrams). Our family tree goes o _
back nine generations of Robinson pastors—all the way ' Lo
back to the Rev. John Robinson who took the Pilgrims to : 3 ‘\
Leyden, Holland. When the Pilgrims returned to England “ ! .
to board the Mayflower, the Rev. Robinson did not o=, '~

accompany them on their adventure, however, his -}3.7 S '
children did. Grandma was a nurse and a teacher in her e
younger years, as well as a long time active member in RUTH ABRAMS

the DAR. Her youngest daughter (of five children), Anne

Schneider, was also a long-time attendee of this church and became a
member in her later years. In March of 1967, the Robinson Memorial
Chapel, funded by my grandmother, was dedicated.

Founded in Faith: Two New Smyrna Beach Congregations turn 140
Daytona Beach News Journal, Sandra Frederick Correspondent



Published November 17, 2015 - Excerpts from the article:

The coastal colony of New Smyrna barely persisted through about a century of
hardships, beginning with those that caused most of its original settlers to flee north to
St. Augustine in the 1770s. After the Civil War, though, new settlers trickled in. The
town of New Smyrna was not incorporated until 1887, with only 150 residents at that,
but a pair of religious congregations that still exist today were formed in 1875. The faith
communities known now as United Church of Christ of New Smyrna Beach and First
Presbyterian Church of New Smyrna Beach reached their 140th anniversaries this year.

A place of religious worship known as the Union Church was constructed in 1875 at the
corner of Faulkner and Washington streets in New Smyrna. The Union Church was used
by various denominations (Presbyterian, Baptist, Methodist, and Episcopal) with a
specific time for services assigned to each and the Rev. Charles G. Selleck as pastor.

First Presbyterian celebrated its 140th anniversary Nov. 22, 2015 with a walk from the
location where it started to the Magnolia Street church. Seven of the 40 members
walking carried candles to signify the seven members that started the church so long
ago, Pastor Robert Ward said. “It was a very symbolic and moving day for everybody”.

At 91, Billy Nettles, dressed in his Sunday best,
greeted the churchgoers passing through the doors

last week. Hugs and firm handshakes were freely

Y

handed out. A member for 25 years, he meets with

the Newman Crewman on Mondays, to study the
Bible, and then clean up the church and grounds. “I
just love this church,” he said with a big grin. He

sees the future as a building block for the church, a

time of growth. With about 215 members, Pastor
Ward said he sees the church as a community
cornerstone. “It is not about the building, it is

HHHHHHEHHHEHHEH

about the body of believers on the inside,” the

pastor said. “I can tell you that Presbyterians play

well with others. We recognize the other religions ’
and accept whoever they are. We have found a way .4 '
to stay true to ourselves. | expect amazing things to
come.”






First Presbyterian Church
509 Magnolia Street
New Smyrna Beach, Florida 32168
386-428-2397
www.firstpresbyteeriannsb.com



